
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

PAC Meeting Minutes August 15, 2022

MINUTES_DRAFT_AUGUST_MEETING_2022.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Amendment – Martin Amundson

Request, submitted by Martin Amundson (Owner/Operator) to amend CUP Z17-0001 to 

allow an existing lawn care business to construct a new storage and office building. 

Parcel 47.011.0700. 41396 County 4 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SE ¼ of 

the NW ¼ of Section 11 TWP 110 Range 15 in Zumbrota Township. A -1 Zoned 

District. 

PACPACKET_AMUNDSON_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Self Service Storage Facility

Request for CUP, submitted by Lariat Companies, Inc. (Owners) to permit an existing 

self service storage facility to allow a structure addition. Parcels 28.131.0010, 

28.131.0020, and 28.131.0030. 32072 Ash Court Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Lots 1, 2, 

and 3 Block 1 of the Evolve Replat in Cannon Falls Township. B Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_LARIAT_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility And 
Establishing A Mineral Extraction Facility Within 300 Feet Of The Toe Of A Bluff (Wojcik)

Request for CUP, submitted by Bruening Rock Products (Applicant) on behalf of 

Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner) for a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility which will be 

within 300 feet of the toe of a bluff. Proposed activities include an aggregate quarry and 

associated processing/transport equipment and facilities. Parcel 34.033.0600. 34399 

County 2 BLVD Red Wing, MN 55066. The NW ¼ and the S ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 

33 TWP 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_WOJCIK_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Conservation Subdivision Plat (Mehrkens)

Request submitted by Ted and Sheila Mehrkens (Owners) for Preliminary and Final 

Plat approval of the proposed “Mehrkens Subdivision” to rezone 40.0 acres and create a 

two lot Conservation Subdivision District on the property currently zoned A-1 

(Agricultural Protection District). Parcels 39.011.0300 and 39.011.0400. TBD HWY 60 

BLVD Mazeppa, MN 55956. The W ½ of the NE ¼ and  part of the NE ¼ of the NW ¼ 

of Section 11 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. 

PACPACKET_MEHRKENS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

PAC Meeting Minutes August 15, 2022

MINUTES_DRAFT_AUGUST_MEETING_2022.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Amendment – Martin Amundson

Request, submitted by Martin Amundson (Owner/Operator) to amend CUP Z17-0001 to 

allow an existing lawn care business to construct a new storage and office building. 

Parcel 47.011.0700. 41396 County 4 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SE ¼ of 

the NW ¼ of Section 11 TWP 110 Range 15 in Zumbrota Township. A -1 Zoned 

District. 

PACPACKET_AMUNDSON_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Self Service Storage Facility

Request for CUP, submitted by Lariat Companies, Inc. (Owners) to permit an existing 

self service storage facility to allow a structure addition. Parcels 28.131.0010, 

28.131.0020, and 28.131.0030. 32072 Ash Court Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Lots 1, 2, 

and 3 Block 1 of the Evolve Replat in Cannon Falls Township. B Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_LARIAT_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility And 
Establishing A Mineral Extraction Facility Within 300 Feet Of The Toe Of A Bluff (Wojcik)

Request for CUP, submitted by Bruening Rock Products (Applicant) on behalf of 

Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner) for a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility which will be 

within 300 feet of the toe of a bluff. Proposed activities include an aggregate quarry and 

associated processing/transport equipment and facilities. Parcel 34.033.0600. 34399 

County 2 BLVD Red Wing, MN 55066. The NW ¼ and the S ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 

33 TWP 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_WOJCIK_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Conservation Subdivision Plat (Mehrkens)

Request submitted by Ted and Sheila Mehrkens (Owners) for Preliminary and Final 

Plat approval of the proposed “Mehrkens Subdivision” to rezone 40.0 acres and create a 

two lot Conservation Subdivision District on the property currently zoned A-1 

(Agricultural Protection District). Parcels 39.011.0300 and 39.011.0400. TBD HWY 60 

BLVD Mazeppa, MN 55956. The W ½ of the NE ¼ and  part of the NE ¼ of the NW ¼ 

of Section 11 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. 

PACPACKET_MEHRKENS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/15ebd090-0778-43bd-af5f-982d3d926ace


Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 
PM by Chair Carli Stark at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Carli Stark, Marc Huneke (arrived at 6:05 PM), Richard Nystuen, Tom 
Gale, Richard Miller, Chris Buck, Darwin Fox, Howard Stenerson, and Todd Greseth (arrived at 
6:01 PM).  

Commissioners Absent: None.  

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field. 

1. Approval of Agenda 
 

1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the meeting 
agenda. 
 
Motion carried 8:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Fox; seconded by Commissioner Buck to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 8:0 
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.     

4. Public Hearings  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Non-Agricultural Use Associated with 
Agri-Tourism (Wedding and Event Center) 
Request, submitted by Michael Barck (Owner) to establish a wedding and event center with a 
proposed maximum occupancy of 250 guests. Parcel 38.016.1000. 42593 Highway 52 BLVD 
Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the E ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 16 TWP 110 Range 16 in Minneola 
Township. A-1 Zoned District.  
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the current agricultural use of the property was. He said 
it doesn’t look like there is one and that entertainment and convention uses are not allowed in 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

an A-1 Zone unless they are associated with an agricultural business through agricultural 
tourism. The Applicant needs to have an agricultural use to have a wedding or event center. 
He referenced the Ordinance definition for agricultural tourism.  

Michael Barck (Owner) stated the land is zoned A-1.  He initially planned to establish a “cut 
your own Christmas tree farm” so there is the agricultural use as a tree farm. Due to winter 
driving conditions on Highway 52 he realized that this would not be a good location for winter 
business. He is not trying to use the adjoining property to qualify himself as agricultural.  It is 
an agricultural area, it’s all agricultural land around him except for the woods.    

Commissioner Buck indicated there are corn fields surrounding the property that are not Mr. 
Barck’s. He questioned whether farmers harvesting during a fall event would disrupt the 
business operations. 

Mr. Barck stated that historically harvest has been after Halloween, into November.  He would 
make any wedding party completely aware that it is a farm. He wants them to enjoy the rural 
setting. There are beautiful views of rolling hills and farmland. For the community to be able 
to have a wedding on a site like that and take all of that in, with the full understanding that it 
is cropland and they may see a combine and farming operations, he welcomes that. Timing-
wise, the first event wouldn’t occur until after planting. He will make the patrons aware that 
there is a possibility of agricultural equipment driving by and associated dust and odors. 

Chair Stark Opened the Public Hearing 
 

Barb Stussy (14884 420th ST, Zumbrota). She is concerned about an event lasting until 
midnight. In the summertime their windows are open and they can hear some traffic from 
Highway 52 and wouldn’t doubt they could hear event noise into the evening. Her concern is 
anything past 10 PM might disturb those in the area. She is concerned about safety as well. 
There is a large hill from Sherwood Trail to 420th Street.  She is concerned about traffic in the 
southbound lane coming over that hill and having to deal with cars pulling out of the event 
center entrance onto Highway 52. There is also the danger of vehicles trying to cross over if 
they want to go north. She is hoping somebody can take a closer look at that and make sure it 
isn’t going to be an issue.  It’s one thing to have a farm and a family coming in and out of a 
driveway onto Highway 52, but if there are 250 people, approximately 100+ cars at a big 
event, that might be an issue,  especially at night, to see what is coming onto the highway. 
MnDOT is doing a study on County 7, which is where Sherwood Trail is.  The study won’t be 
concluded until December of this year. There are some questions as to whether or not they will 
be closing some accesses to Highway 52. She knows County 7 is supposed to stay open but she 
questioned whether the PAC knows what is going to happen in the stretch between 420th Street 
and County 7 that might be affected by a future overpass. Is it prudent to wait until the study is 
completed and find out what they intend to do with that section? She would hate to have Mr. 
Barck put all this money and time into a project and then have a big interchange negatively 
affect his proposal.   
 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Brent Bjorngaard (42380 Hwy 52 Blvd., Zumbrota). He and his wife are concerned about 
safety. He has lived here for 20 years and his wife has lived off of Highway 52 for almost 40 
years. Presently MnDOT is not closing off the crossing to get to the event center but his 
understanding is that in the future it will be closed off. His driveway will be closed off after 
next year and there will be a J-Turn on the northbound lane, past their driveway, which they 
and everyone else on 145th Avenue Way will need to use. One of the things he sees being an 
issue is turn lane capacity. He stated wedding guests typically arrive within a short period 
from each other. If 50 cars are trying to cross the highway, is the turn lane going to be long 
enough to accommodate that traffic? There have been plenty of times when cars and campers 
are trying to cross to go to Sherwood and there’s a backup and vehicles are on the highway. 
His big concern is its safety and the future of closing everything off after 2023 or sometime in 
2023. He thinks it is a great idea, he just doesn’t know about its safety.     
 
Rick Zillgitt (43148 145th Ave Way, Zumbrota). He reiterated safety concerns on Highway 52.  
His understanding is that they are going to have J-Turns approximately 100 yards west, or 
north, depending on how someone looks at Highway 52, from 145th Street. The other concern 
that he has is the noise. The operation is proposed to be open 5 nights a week, Wednesday 
through Sunday.  They already have the Shades of Sherwood Campground to the south of 
them, and they can hear them all summer long on the weekends. The campground will have 
live bands or music and he can hear it from his property. This site is about the same distance 
away, so they will be getting noise from the south and the north. This is a quiet, secluded area.  
 
Jared Zillgitt (43104 145th Ave Way, Zumbrota). He does think this is a good idea. The main 
concern he has is the noise. He is about 4500 feet from Shades of Sherwood campground. They 
have a band 3 times a year (Memorial, Labor Day, and 4th of July) and they can hear every 
song. Michael Barck’s house is about 1900 feet from him so it will be considerably louder. The 
application does say activities will be in a tent but he was wondering if, in the middle of July, 
when it is hot, the tent will be enclosed? He is familiar with a few of the wedding venues in 
Goodhue County and to his knowledge, all of them are in a building that can be air-
conditioned, not a tent. He doesn’t think he would have a problem with this use being 
conducted within a building. They love to have their windows open at night and they wouldn’t 
love listening to someone else’s music every night. He is concerned that the tent won’t keep all 
of the noise in.     
 
Bob Flaaen (42594 Hwy 52 Blvd., Zumbrota). He clarified that the surrounding fields are for 
corn and soybeans. The harvest time frame after October is probably accurate. But if there are 
a lot of soybeans, the harvest would likely be sooner than that. He farms across the highway 
from Mr. Barck. His biggest concern is safety. There is a massive Highway 52 project going 
through where they are removing accesses and crossings for safety. This crossing, which he 
shares with Mr. Barck, was going to be removed. Due to issues with County 7 the project was 
tabled. The plans that he has seen don’t include any frontage roads. They were just going to 
take away his crossing and he would have to go north to go south. The biggest question he has 



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

is if that happens, what does that do to 250 people trying to get in and out of this place? He 
echoed the concerns of turn lanes being long enough to hold cars. He has sat on that highway 
sometimes ten minutes trying to get on or across. It can be difficult, especially on the 
weekends. Friday nights and Sundays are horrible. He also has some safety concerns with 
having 250 people, some of who may not be in a state to drive, leaving an event trying to get 
on Highway 52.  
 
Adam Bang (42400 145th Ave Way, Zumbrota) stated he is the closest house to Mr. Barck’s.  
His main concern is the noise. He is not against this use but feels a more permanent structure, 
something where the doors could be closed, to keep the noise down, would be better. If he 
wanted to listen to all kinds of music, he would have stayed living in town, listening to all the 
traffic. The safety of Highway 52 is also a concern. It is not the safest road for that amount of 
people getting on and off at all times of the night. He is not against it, but some things need to 
be looked at. He thinks a more permanent structure would be better than a tent.       
 

3After Chair Stark called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Greseth and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 9:0 
 
Chair Stark stated she believes it was briefly mentioned that MnDOT looked at this proposal.  
Does staff have any more information on this?  Are there plans that have been mentioned?   
 
Pierret said she talked to MnDOT District 6 staff. All required documents were submitted 
regarding this request, asking them to review the use and the proposed number of vehicles at 
this intersection. Their response came back stating that the runoff into the right-of-way is their 
only concern.  Mr. Barck would have to have an engineer look at that runoff impact but those 
were the only comments received from MnDOT.  
 
Commissioner Nystuen said the two concerns are pretty obvious – noise and traffic. He asked 
Mr. Barck if it would cause any problems for his project if he were to put up a permanent 
structure.   
 
Mr. Barck stated economics is definitely at the forefront of deciding to use a seasonal tent.  He 
discussed the cost of installing a seasonal tent versus installing an event building on-site. 
Ultimately, down the road, he would like a building. It’s a home operation, family owned and 
operated, so he is not a corporation with deep pockets. He is also concerned with the potential 
for noise impacts. He does not want to upset his neighbors so the stage or DJ would be located 
in the southwest corner of the tent and speakers would be directed to the east, where there are 
no homes. He noted his application stated events would end at midnight but he clarified that 
midnight would be the time when the very last people are leaving. The music would end by 11 



Page 5 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

PM. He is having a friend come out with a speaker and they are going to do some sound tests.  
He would like to see where the sound level is nearby.   
 
Commissioner Nystuen said the Applicant had mentioned something about Christmas trees but 
then said that it probably wouldn’t work as far as traffic going in and out of the place.   
 
Mr. Barck said yes, under winter driving conditions.    
 
Commissioner Nystuen clarified that because of the ice etc. access might be more problematic. 
 
Mr. Barck agreed. He added that at this point, MnDOT is not slated to remove the median, but 
it will be removed someday. The County 7 interchange is a mile down the hill. MnDOT has to 
figure out that project because they were going to put in a J-Turn and then they pulled that 
project out of the current Highway 52 project. He thinks it will be safer when the median is 
removed because the cars will have to go to the right. He noted he does not see 100+ cars 
leaving at one time. There might be four or five cars that want to go out at the same time.  
They will go down and use the current or improved turn lanes to turn around to go back north 
or continue south. MnDOT wants a hydraulic water study test for the stormwater runoff, so he 
is working on that. He does not think it will be any less safe than the traffic flow that goes on 
and off Highway 52 daily.     
 
Chair Stark asked, with MnDOT, what happens if they do the run-off study and then need to 
make improvements. 
 
Mr. Barck said he has to provide them with this run-off report. They are requesting any 
potential stormwater not to flow into Highway 52 right-of-way. Worst case scenario there 
would be the creation of a shallow holding pond and slight grading. There may need to be skid 
loader work to slope it so water isn’t flowing down. The parking area will be gravel which 
MnDOT considers “impervious”. He knows that they can deal with the stormwater concerns.          
 
Chair Stark said she does see a condition provided by staff where they have to comply with 
MnDOT. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson said he is running into this problem, that if they support this, they are 
violating their Ordinance. The application does not list a Christmas Tree Farm as a current 
use.  He was around when this Ordinance was written and there was a reason why they 
required these types of venues to be tied to an agricultural use in an A-1 Zone. To be proper, the 
property needs to be rezoned to an appropriate zone where a stand-alone venue is allowed.  
The way the ordinance is written, it’s set up to be an agricultural tourism business, it has to be 
tied to an agricultural business. The PAC is also supposed to be looking out for public health 
and safety. He works with the Sheriff’s department, riding around with deputies, and talking 
to various people. Highway 52 is one of the most dangerous highways in our County. It is four 



Page 6 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

lanes, driveways are entering it, and the average speed is over 70 miles per hour.  He 
discussed safety concerns at venues where alcohol is served. MnDOT knows there are safety 
issues here and that’s why they’re redesigning the Highway. He questioned whether after the 
County 7 project is done they could take a look at this again. He is concerned about the safety 
and that the use does not conform with the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Commissioner Nystuen asked staff to clarify whether when they permitted Cannon River 
Winery, they were going to bus attendees to the property. Does staff know if that is something 
they have done? 
 
Commissioner Greseth said that they were using buses two weeks ago. 
 
Commissioner Nystuen asked if that would be a possibility Mr. Barck could look into so there 
are not all of these cars coming in and out.  
 
Commissioner Miller stated that the safety issue is important, but he doesn’t know if that 
should be the overriding issue. What he has a problem with is it doesn’t fit the zone. He thinks 
they are bending that ordinance a lot to allow this unless they are going to rezone that 
particular property to make it fit what the ordinances say. He finds it hard to connect this to 
an agricultural business.   
 
Commissioner Greseth asked if we denied an event center less than a year ago because they 
were A-1.   
 
Commissioner Miller stated yes. 
 
Commissioner Greseth said he agrees that if it doesn’t follow the ordinances, he will have a 
tough time supporting this.     
 
Commissioner Miller stated that in that instance they rezoned that section of the Township to 
make it permissible.   
 
Chair Stark questioned whether that was a retreat center.   
 
Commissioner Miller confirmed it was the retreat center that they had just approved last 
month.   
  
Chair Stark said she has concerns with traffic flow. Given that MnDOT is going to do a bunch 
of construction, that was concerning to her.    

4It was moved by Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to: 



Page 7 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

• Adopt the staff report into the record; 
• Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 

record; 
• Amend the findings of fact to state that the use does not conform to A-1 District 

zoning standards, the use may create offensive noise, and there are safety concerns 
regarding access to and from Highway 52; and 

• Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the request from Michael Barck 
to establish a wedding/event facility with a maximum occupancy of 250 guests.  

 

Commissioner Nystuen stated one issue is that the use does not meet the ordinance 
requirements. What if they had a goat and 3 chickens? What is the agricultural use they are 
looking for? 

Commissioner Stenerson said a lot of the reasons for these rules is they didn’t want stand-
alone commercial operations in an A-1 zone. If this was an A-2 zone or a different zone, it 
would be a different situation. But this is an agricultural protection zone. The idea was that 
these operations in the A-1 Zone were supposed to supplement the Ag business that was 
already operating on a site.   

Mr. Barck stated he is zoned A-1 and he has a business called Summit Tree Farm and Nursery.  
He does have the Christmas trees and has also sold live evergreens from there. He questioned 
at what point he could be considered agricultural. Would he qualify if he sells some live trees or 
cut trees? What’s the true definition of an ag business? Is there a time frame someone has to be 
in business for before they’re considered a producer? He said he signed paperwork for the 
county FSA that he is a producer.     

Hanni said she thinks some of the confusing parts are within the “Ag-related uses” portion of 
the Ordinance.  The Ordinance notes barn dances and vineyard harvest festivals and it doesn’t 
specify weddings but it lists similar uses. She thinks that might be a task for the planning 
commission to decide if weddings, barn dances, and vineyard festivals are what we want to 
allow in the A-1 District. There is another option to table the request to see if some better 
information can be obtained from MnDOT on what they are going to do. If the proposal is 
tabled there may be some more thoughts on what to do with barn dances, vineyards, and 
wedding events in the A-1.  

Commissioner Stenerson commented that there are still safety and noise issues that were 
brought up in public testimony that they have to deal with. On the zoning ordinance issue, 
there are two factors there. One is with what the actual language says but there is also the 
intent behind the ordinance.  The intent was the side businesses that were run would 
supplement a viable agricultural operation. Having one goat, two chickens, or selling three 
Christmas trees is not a business, it’s a hobby. He doesn’t make his living at it, that’s not his Ag 
business. Whereas if he had a giant greenhouse and raised roses, it would make sense to do a 
wedding venue that would supplement the Ag business income. The Ordinance was designed to 



Page 8 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

protect A-1 for agriculture. The goal was not to start allowing a lot of other things that would 
conflict unless they were directly connected.  

Commissioner Gale said from what he is hearing, the primary use of the property is going to 
be the main business. If raising roses or raising grapes, that’s the primary income of the 
property and the venue would be a secondary to make additional income.    

Commissioner Stenerson stated that is the way he interpreted the ordinance. This is an A-1 
Zone and the goal of these side ventures in Ag tourism was a way to supplement the Ag 
income.     

Chair Stark said, based on what she is reading, it doesn’t specify it has to be a profitable 
agricultural establishment. She doesn’t know if she agrees with Commissioner Stenerson on 
this because of the language.   

Motion carried 8:1 (Stark opposed) 

Hanni said if Mr. Barck would like to come back, and propose something to address the issues, 
it sounds like the main issue is Highway 52 safety, they can discuss more details. She thinks 
they are kind of threading the needle on the Ag use, and they can have that discussion. It 
sounds like if the Applicant would find out from MnDOT what’s planned for that intersection it 
would help. Mr. Barck did say he was going to address some of the noise issues and test it 
within his tent and look into a permanent structure. She understands she cannot ask the 
commission to make their decision based on that, but if he chooses to come back next month, it 
would be nice that he would be able to tick off those things that there are concerns tonight.     

Commissioner Miller said this allows Mr. Barck time to look into a permanent structure.  He 
thinks the board would be a lot happier if they had some information on that also.   

Commissioner Buck suggested Mr. Barck invite his neighbors or tell his neighbors when he 
does the sound check.   

Mr. Barck said he didn’t want to limit his hours or days of operation in the application 
however the likelihood that a wedding is going to be every Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, and 
Saturday is very slim. Noise and traffic are also his concerns. He will do what he needs to do to 
address and control the noise such as making sure the music is turned off at an established 
time. He would be happy to address those issues if they could take a look at it again next 
month. 

Commissioner Stenerson said he is sure staff could sit down with him and look at other zones 
and other things that could be done to satisfy the Ordinance. He feels it would help to see a 
safety plan with what Mr. Barck is going to do and how it is going to be addressed.  If MnDOT 
could come in and clarify what is going to be happening. If there is a safety plan they can 
attach that as a condition and hold Mr. Barck accountable.  

Chair Stark said she did not have as much of an issue with how it is zoned, given the way the 
ordinance is written and the different ways it can be interpreted.  But she does have safety 



Page 9 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

concerns. Hearing more about safety and how traffic is not going to back up in the turn lanes 
would help her.   

Other Discussion 

Commissioner Huneke asked if they wanted to look at all the terminology in the ordinance and 
start to clean it up so there isn’t confusion on whether they could sell one tree a year and be 
considered an Ag business and add a wedding venue.  

Hanni thinks they should look into the ordinance language. When looking at agricultural-
related uses, they allow barn dances, corn mazes, and vineyard harvest festivals. Maybe this 
could be assigned to the sub-committee to review. 

Commissioner Fox agrees with Commissioner Huneke and Hanni. They had one in Welch and 
dealt with the same things regarding noise. They have animals and livestock on-site and it was 
a farm. They need to probably refine, define, and set some more standards and information. 
He feels that for future use, it needs to be defined and they need to look at some of the language 
to see how ag-tourism fits into the different zones, A-1, A-2, and so on.   

Chair Stark agreed.  Maybe looking at whether there is a separate use for weddings. She is not 
sure if that would work. Forestry and horticulture are also considered agricultural uses. None 
of this is tied to profit. There are a lot of things in here that they are not thinking of as 
agriculture uses specifically. 

Commissioner Stenerson said they should probably get this over to the subcommittee to clean 
up some of this language. If they are doing that, maybe they should include a discussion about 
whether they are ready to start opening up A-1 to whatever uses. Does it need to be tied to 
agriculture? He agrees the language is kind of messy, but the intent was they wanted to keep 
this Ag. There is a lot of pressure now in these A-1 zones, they already have a lot of houses.  
Should they be looking more at rezoning some of those spots that maybe aren’t technically A-1, 
should they be opening it up for more things?   

Chair Stark said that it sounds like the first step would be to discuss all of the different options 
available. She was wondering if they could also look at ordinances from other counties that 
might be similar.   

Hanni stated that one of the County’s priorities is to keep people living in the rural areas.  
Sometimes it is difficult to stay in a rural area if there is no other source of income, whether it’s 
a wedding venue or agriculture use. This is why the County has allowed some of these things to 
be in rural areas. Applicants put a lot of money, planning, and involvement into these 
proposals.  

Chair Stark asked if it would be possible to do a work session to discuss this versus during a 
formal meeting so it can be a little more informal.   

Hanni stated they could do that before the next meeting. They can discuss what time would 
work.   



Page 10 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 August 15, 2022 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

5ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Greseth and seconded by Commissioner Fox to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 7:12 p.m.  

Motion carried 9:0 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 

MOTIONS 
1APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda. 
 Motion carried 8:0 
2APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes. 
 Motion carried 8:0 
3Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

 Motion carried 9:0 
4Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the wedding and event facility request 
from Michael Barck.     
 Motion carried 8:1 
5ADJOURN. Motion to adjourn the meeting.   
 Motion carried 9:0 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 17, 2022 
Report date:  October 7, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Amendment – Green Edge Lawn Service and Spring-Green 
Lawn Care 
Request submitted by Martin Amundson (owner/operator) to amend CUP Z17-0001 to allow an 
existing lawn care business to construct a new storage and office building.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Martin Amundson (owner/operator) 
Address of zoning request: 41396 CTY 4 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel(s): 47.011.0700 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 11 TWP 110 Range 15 in Zumbrota 
Township 
Township Information: Zumbrota Township acknowledged the request at their September 13th, 2022 
meeting with no additional comments.  
Zoning District: A1 (Agricultural Protection District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Z17-0001 (existing CUP) 
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicant (Martin Amundson) has operated Green Edge Lawn Service since 2001, which 
primarily consists of lawn mowing, yard clean-up, and snow removal. Spring-Green Lawn Care has 
been in operation since 2016, and focuses on lawn care, including fertilization, weed control, lawn 
aeration, and mosquito reduction. Mr. Amundson received Conditional Use Permit (CUP) approval 
in April 2017 to begin operating as a "Business primarily intended to serve the agricultural 
community”. He is requesting to amend his existing CUP (Z17-0001) to allow the construction of a 
125 x 200 square foot building to be used as office/meeting space and to store farm machinery.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage, and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 
Project Summary:  
Property / Building Information: 
 The subject property consists of a single parcel comprising approximately 10.09-acres. Additional 

land from parcel 47.011.0701 will be combined with parcel 47.011.0700 to accommodate the new 
building. The new parcel lines will allow the structure to meet all GCZO standards, including 
property line setbacks.  

 The property and all adjacent parcels are zoned A1 (Agricultural Protection). Adjacent land uses 
include feedlots and row-crop agriculture among medium-density residential uses. 

 The Applicant intends to construct a 125-foot x 200-foot building to provide office space for the 
lawncare businesses and allow storage space for farm machinery. There is an existing office 
building on the property that was approved with the initial CUP in 2017. This existing structure 
will continue to be used for lawn care businesses.  

 A building permit will need to be approved by the Goodhue County Building Permits Department 
prior to construction. The proposed building will also require proper well and septic permits 
from Environmental Health prior to construction.   

 Solid waste disposal services are provided by a professional waste management company.  

 No signage is proposed. 

 Exterior yard lighting will be installed around the building for safety and security. The lights are 
downward projecting to limit off-site disturbances.  

 The Applicant stated there will be no excessive noise generated on the property. Any noise that 
does occur will not be uncharacteristic of agricultural operations in the surrounding area.  

Business Information: 
 The main activity on site is row-crop agriculture and harvesting. The Applicant’s dwelling and 

shop for the lawncare businesses are also on the property. The office area of the new shop will be 
used as employee work and meeting space. There is very little customer traffic to the site as 
operations are conducted off-site. 

 Primary hours of operation are Monday through Friday from 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM in the summer 
and 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM during the winter months.  

 The Applicant operates the business with the assistance of 5 on-site employees and 23 off-site 
employees. No additional employees are proposed. 

 Parcel access is located off of County 4 BLVD (asphalt surface) on the west end of the property. 
Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the facility. 

 A minimum of 2 parking spaces is required by Ordinance for the use. Ample space for parking is 
available on-site.  
Per GCZO Article 11, Section 16 minimum off-street parking provisions for industrial 
establishments, manufacturing, research, and testing laboratories, creameries, bottling works, 
printing and engraving shops, warehousing or storage buildings shall be “one (1) parking 
space for each three (3) employees computed on the basis of the greatest number of persons to 
be employed at any one period during the day or night.  

 A review of the property record found no complaints regarding the Applicant’s business since it 
began operations 5 years ago. 

 A majority of the space in the proposed building will be used to store machinery associated with 
row-crop agriculture operations on the property. This is considered a permitted agricultural use 
and does not need to be included with the CUP.  

Drainage/Landscaping: 
 The site has minor topographic relief with slopes ranging from 0-2% in the project area. The land 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

slopes gradually from northeast to southwest. On-site drainage is directed south via a grassed 
waterway, and through an existing driveway culvert that channels water to an adjacent ditch.  

 Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Water Planner Chad Hildebrand reviewed 
the site and did not identify any issues with the location for the proposed structure.  

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed structure does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in the 
immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use is located in an A1 (Agricultural Protection) 
zone which is intended to allow for agricultural operations and associated businesses. The 
surrounding area is primarily used for row-crop agriculture and the new structure is not 
anticipated to impact views from neighboring properties.  

2. The proposed structure is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. The proposal will 
meet or exceed all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance upon parcel 
line reconfiguration and does not appear incompatible with adjacent agricultural land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the 
proposed use.  

4. The property has ample room to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve 
the use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning standards.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. All lighting is downward 
deflecting, there is little dust generation on the site given the limited traffic and low speeds, and 
the noise generated from the business, are limited in duration, and are not uncharacteristic of 
existing agricultural operations in the vicinity. 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the Request submitted by Martin 
Amundson (owner/operator) to amend CUP Z17-0001 to allow an existing lawn care business to 
construct a 125-foot x 200-foot building for office space and machinery storage. This amendment 
shall revoke and replace CUP Z17-0001. Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The structure shall be constructed according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to constructing the new building; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 21 
(Agricultural Protection District); 

4. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

5. Applicant shall obtain approval from Goodhue County Environmental Health for well and 
septic use prior to beginning operations;  

6. The property line reconfiguration shall be recorded with the Goodhue County Recorder’s 



























 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 5 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 17, 2022  
Report date:  October 7, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: CUP request for a Self Service Storage Facility 
Request for CUP, submitted by Lariat Companies, Inc. (Owners) to permit an existing self-service 
storage facility to allow a structure addition.   
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Lariat Companies, Inc. (Owners) 
Address of zoning request: 32072 Ash Court Cannon Falls, MN 55069 
Parcel(s): 28.131.0010, 28.131.0020, 28.131.0030 
Abbreviated Legal: Lots 1, 2, and 3 Block 1 of the Evolve Replat in Cannon Falls Township                 
Township Information: Cannon Falls Township has been made aware of the request and is working on 
permitting the facility.                                                                                                                                                  
Zoning District: B (Business District) 

 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Article 11 Section 34 Self-Service Storage Facilities  
Article 27 B, Business District 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicant (Lariat Companies, Inc.) is requesting a CUP to allow an existing self-service storage 
facility to construct a 51-foot x 48-foot structure addition. The property has operated as a self-service 
storage facility since 1993. At that time, self-service storage facilities were not regulated by Goodhue 
County. Until 2022 the use was considered an existing non-conformity. No structural alterations are 
permitted on non-conforming buildings or uses without obtaining an appropriate permit. 

On August 11, 2022, the Goodhue County Board of Commissioners approved Zoning Ordinance 
amendments that included permitting self-service storage facilities as a conditional use in the 
Business and Industrial District. With these changes, any operational or structural changes to an 
existing self-service storage facility in Goodhue County is contingent on the approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage, and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 5 

 
Property / Building Information: 
 The subject property consists of three contiguous parcels comprising approximately 4.03-    

acres.  

 The property is surrounded by the City of Cannon Falls and is among properties zoned B-2, 
General Business District. Highway 52 BLVD comprises the property’s western border. 

 Access to the site is off of Ash Court (asphalt surface) on the west side of the property. 

 The property consists of 12 storage units, ranging in size from 10 feet x 10 feet to 10 feet x 32 
feet. There is also exterior storage at the northwest corner of the site on parcel 28.131.0010.  

 The Applicant intends to construct a 48-foot x 51-foot addition to provide additional storage 
space and to align with the existing buildings on the west side of the lot. The addition will be 
similar in structure and design to the existing buildings.  

The Applicant is aware the addition will not meet right-of-way setback requirements in the B 
District. They have applied for a variance to these setbacks, and this item will be on the 
agenda for the October 24th, 2022 Board of Adjustment meeting.  

 Exterior yard lighting is installed around the buildings for safety and security. The lights are 
downward projecting to limit off-site disturbances. The new addition would have similar 
lighting installed.  

Business Information: 
 The site is primarily used for personal storage space rental. According to the rental agreement 

(see attached), tenants are not allowed to use the space for mechanical work or sales 
(including garage sales) and are not allowed to store any living organisms or materials 
classified as hazardous. All vehicles (including lawnmowers and power tools) are to have the 
oil and gas drained before storing. Electricity, water, or other utilities are not allowed, and 
signage displayed by tenants is prohibited.  

 Primary hours of operation are year-round, 7:00 AM to 9:00 PM, 7 days a week.  

 The Applicant stated there are no on-site employees and monitoring is done remotely 
through the use of cameras and a secured access gate. 

 The Applicant stated there is very little noise generation, and traffic is not expected to be a 
nuisance due to the varying hours the storage units are accessed.    

 The Applicant stated the existing aggregate on the site will be replaced with asphalt in the 
Spring of 2023.  

 The site perimeter is partially surrounded by chainlink fencing, including the area where 
exterior storage is permitted. According to Article 11, Section 34 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance, exterior storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment may require 
screening from public view.  The Planning Commission should consider if additional 
screening should be established.  

 There are currently two signs on the premises, and one billboard (see attached images). No 
additional signage is proposed to be installed.  

 A review of the property record found no complaints regarding the Applicant’s business since 
it began operations 29 years ago. 

Drainage/Landscaping: 
 The site has minor topographic relief with slopes ranging from 0-2% in the project area. 

There is a bluff located in the northeast corner of the property, and care should be taken to 
ensure there is no disruption to this natural feature.   

 Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Water Planner Chad Hildebrand 
reviewed the proposal and offered the following comments: 

“The site currently follows the drainage swale in the back or west of the property and 
travels towards Hwy 52. No issues with the proposed change from aggregate to asphalt, 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 5 

and no significant changes in stormwater flows are anticipated with the proposed 
addition.” 

 The Applicant is not required to submit a landscaping/drainage plan as the facility already 
exists.  

  Access: 
 Staff is aware a gated fence was installed between 2018 and 2020 over the public right-of-way 

(Ash Court). This gated access could prevent the neighboring property owner to the south 
(Randy Rechtzigel) from accessing his land via the public right of way. Staff has discussed this 
issue with the Applicants and they have stated their intention to remove the gate and install a 
perimeter fence on their property.   

 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The self-service storage facility and proposed building expansion do not appear injurious to the 
use and enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would 
it substantially diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use is located 
in a B (Business) zone which is intended to allow for retail, service, and repair establishments. 
The surrounding area is primarily used for local businesses and the structure addition is not 
anticipated to impact views from neighboring properties.  

2. The self-service storage facility and proposed building expansion are not anticipated to impede 
the normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses 
predominant to the area. The proposal does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the use.  

4. The facility has ample room to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the 
use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning standards.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. All lighting is downward 
projecting, there is little dust generation on the site given the limited traffic and low speeds. 
Noises generated from the business are limited in duration and not uncharacteristic of existing 
business operations in the vicinity. 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Lariat 
Companies Inc. (Owners) to permit an existing self-service storage facility and for construction of a 
51-foot by 48-foot structure addition. 
 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The use shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless 
modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to constructing the addition; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 27 
(Business District); and Article 11, Section 34 (Self-service Storage Facilities). 

4. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 6 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 17, 2022 
Report date:  October 7, 2022 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility and 
Establishing a Mineral Extraction Facility within 300 feet of the Toe of a Bluff 
(Wojcik)  
Request for CUP, submitted by Bruening Rock Products (Applicant) on behalf of Barbara Wojcik 
LT (Owner) for a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility which will be within 300 feet of the toe 
of a bluff. Proposed activities include an aggregate quarry and associated processing/transport 
equipment and facilities.   
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Bruening Rock Products (Applicant) on behalf of Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 34399 County 2 BLVD Red Wing, MN 55066 
PID(s): 34.033.0600 
Abbreviated Legal: The NW ¼ and the S ½ of the SE ¼ of Section 33 TWP 112 Range 14 in Hay 
Creek Township. 
Zoning District: A-2 (Agriculture District) 

 
Attachments and Links:  
Applications and project summary/maps 
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428 
 
Background:  
Bruening Rock Products (Applicant) on behalf of Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner) has submitted a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application proposing to re-establish a mining site to extract non-
metallic mineral aggregates (limestone aggregate). The site will also be within 300 feet of the toe of 
a bluff. Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12 requires any quarries established within 300 
feet of the top or toe of a bluff to receive CUP approval. The site is proposed to include 23.02 acres 
of mining. Proposed products to be mined will be used as road rock and construction rip rap. 
Mining that includes extraction of more than 400 cubic yards per year in the A-2 District is subject 
to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit by the County Board.   
 
An aggregate quarry was permitted on the subject property in 2001. The facility operated under a 
Land Use Permit until 2018 when the LUP was revoked due to non-payment of mining registration 
fees. The operation extracted less than 400 cubic yards per year after 2018 therefore a permit for 
mineral extraction was not required under the County’s Ordinance. The Applicant is proposing to 
extract over 400 cubic yards per year therefore a new Conditional Use Permit is required. 
 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 6 

The previously mined area was not reclaimed and mineral extraction permits did not require 
reclamation plans in 2001. With the re-opening of the quarry and a new CUP application, the 
Applicant is required to submit a reclamation plan for the facility which will ensure the area is 
properly reclaimed in an environmentally friendly manner.  

 
Project Summary: 
Staff has met with engineers from G-Cubed to guide the preparation of a proposal to conform to 
County application submittal requirements and performance standards to operate a Non-Metallic 
Mineral Extraction Facility in Hay Creek Township.   
 
Land Use Management Department Staff have conducted a thorough review of the CUP Application 
submittals. Three maps required in Article 14 of the County Zoning Ordinance depicting existing 
site conditions, proposed operations, and reclamation plans were submitted for review along with a 
narrative describing additional details.  
 
Existing Conditions: 
 
The Applicants prepared the required Map A depicting existing site conditions. One 120-acre parcel 
owned by Barbara Wojcik LT will be affected by the proposed mining operation. The parcel is 
located in Section 33 of Hay Creek Township and is zoned A-2, Agriculture District. The parcel 
consists of row crop agriculture among wooded blufflands and a formerly mined area. Some 
cropland is located within the Floodplain and Shoreland Districts of Wells Creek. There is an 
existing access driveway from the dwelling site to the south (Parcel 26.004.0500) to the formerly 
mined area. The dwelling site is also owned by Barbara Wojcik LT.  
 
The nearest residence (owned by Betcher Heritage Farms, PID 34.034.1200) is over 2,000 feet 
from the nearest area to be mined on parcel 34.033.0600. Article 14 specifies that mining 
operations should be at least 1000 feet from existing dwellings.  
 
Four soil boring logs were provided with the application. Existing site geology was submitted as 
seen on Map A Sheet 3. The parcel is surrounded by A-2 zoned properties on all sides, used mainly 
for row crop agriculture among wooded blufflands.  Section 33 contains two dwellings where a 
maximum of 12 are permitted, one per original ¼ ¼ section. Any future dwellings must be setback 
at least 1,000 feet from mineral extraction facilities unless written consent to a lesser setback is 
recorded by the mineral extraction facility (Article 14 Section 6 Subd 4).   
 
Proposed Operations: 
 
The Applicants prepared the required Figure B depicting proposed quarry operations. 
Approximately 23.02 acres of the 120 total acres will be impacted by the mining operation. A 4-foot 
tall berm at a 1:3 slope is proposed to be established around the perimeter of the quarry as a 
screening and water diversion berm. The berm will be constructed using topsoil from the area to be 
mined. Three cross-sections are depicted on Map B Sheet 6 Proposed Operations.  
 
The proposed area to be mined complies with all required setbacks in the Zoning Ordinance. All 
stockpiles are proposed to meet the required property line setback of 50 feet. A scale and scale 
house are the only structures proposed to be constructed on-site in the southeast corner of the 
project area. All mining vehicle parking and equipment storage will be located within the 23 acres 
to be mined. Employee parking would typically be along the access road. Proposed months of 
operation are April to November from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 7:00 
a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Saturday which is within the hours of operation limitations found in the Zoning 
Ordinance. The quarry may be open during winter months if demand warrants. 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 6 

   
• Noise, Dust, Vibration, and Air Quality: 

 
Impacts from the proposed non-metallic mineral extraction facility may include noise, 
vibration, and dust.  Noise may be expected by periodic blasting and the use of heavy 
equipment for mining, loading, and transport. Noise limitations and mitigation is regulated by 
the Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA).  

 
The Applicants have indicated that blasting will be conducted by a licensed blasting contractor 
in compliance with federal and state laws and best practices between 1 to 3 times per year as 
demand warrants. No explosives will be stored on-site and Article 14 requires seismic blasting 
records to be submitted to the Zoning Administrator within 10 days of receiving the blast 
analysis.  

 
The mining operation will be subject to complying with applicable MPCA Noise Standards. 
Features included in the Proposed Operations Plan such as creating an earthen berm around 
the perimeter of the mining area that would be seeded to establish vegetative cover would 
help mitigate dust and noise impacts on neighboring properties. 

• Water Resources:  
 

The proposed quarry is a high point on the property and minor impacts to existing surface 
water flow are anticipated. The Applicant has stated that the quarry will drain inward. All 
surface water within the quarry will flow to the low point and infiltrate through the floor of the 
quarry. Drainage around the quarry will continue in existing patterns to the east, west, and 
south. 

 
The operation will not be within ¼ mile of any public waters. Parcel 34.033.0600 is within the 
Floodplain and Shoreland of Wells Creek however the quarry will not be located within these 
areas. Wells Creek has been designated as an impaired water by the MPCA for Total Suspended 
Solids. The Applicant has indicated runoff will be contained within the mine and no negative 
impacts to Wells Creek are anticipated. 
 
No dewatering is proposed with the operation.  
 
• Aesthetics:  

  
Aggregate mining is a high-impact land use that results in significant long-term alterations to 
the landscape in addition to visual impacts for the duration of the mining activity.  These may 
include seeing open pits, major equipment, and gravel-hauling trucks.   

 
The quarry as proposed will not be visible from public right-of-ways due to topography, 
vegetation, and distance from public roads. Stockpiles will be limited to 35 feet in height.  

 
Vehicles accessing and leaving the site will utilize County 2 BLVD (asphalt surface). The 
Applicant has indicated the existing private bridge over Wells Creek used to access the dwelling 
site and mining area is capable of handling proposed loads. The Applicant is aware that any 
reconstruction of the bridge must be reviewed and permitted by the Minnesota DNR.  
 
• Traffic Safety:   

 
The Applicants have indicated that they expect an average of 25 truck trips per day during 
operation. The public access road to the quarry site is County 2 BLVD which is maintained by 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 6 

Goodhue County. A 3,350-foot-long driveway leads from County 2 BLVD to the quarry site. 
The nearest dwelling is approximately 400 feet from the driveway entrance/exit onto County 2 
BLVD (Parcel 26.003.0300, Andy Stemmann).  Goodhue County Public Works Deputy 
Director Jess Greenwood reviewed the proposal and noted: 
 
My concerns would be where the trucks are going when leaving loaded from the quarry and 
the overweight equipment moving in and out. We have posted bridge structures on CSAH 2 
and CR 45. During spring road restrictions CSAH 2 is a 10 ton route CR 45 is a 6 ton route. If 
there is tracking onto CSAH 2 from their operations the road needs to be swept/cleaned 
routinely.  
 
• Site Security: 
The Applicant noted that due to the location of the quarry away from public roads, fencing is 
not proposed to be installed. A sign will be erected at the quarry entrance stating rules and 
regulations. The Planning Commission should consider whether fencing should be required in 
accordance with Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 4(B) “Fencing, signs, and barriers are required 
around ponding areas and steep-sloped excavation areas unless, because of their location they 
are not deemed to create a safety hazard.”    
 

Reclamation Plan: 
 
The Applicants prepared a Reclamation Plan which includes the removal of any structures, 
temporary improvements, and spreading of salvaged topsoil across all disturbed areas at a 
minimum depth of 6 inches. All disturbed areas will be seeded with an appropriate seed mix for 
vegetation re-establishment. 
 
Map B Sheet 6 shows the proposed final reclamation grade at a 1:3 slope. Reclamation will be 
considered complete once a minimum of 70% vegetative cover has been established.  
 
The Applicant is proposing to use the reclaimed quarry for grassland/animal habitat. 
 
Bluffs: 
Article 12 Section 4 Subd. 4 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance states “No person may begin 
a mining or quarrying activity or expand a mining or quarrying activity within 300 feet of the toe or 
top of a bluff without a conditional use permit”. The Applicants’ engineers worked with County staff 
to identify areas classified as bluffs on the property. Upon identification of blufflands by the 
Goodhue SWCD, the Applicants are proposing to mine 0 feet from the toe and top of bluffs. Land 
Use Management and SWCD staff have discussed this proposal with the Applicants’ engineers and 
have determined the proposed mineral extraction activities will not be detrimental to the bluffs if 
best management practices are used.  
 
SWCD Comments: 
Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District Natural Resource Specialist Chad Hildebrand and 
SWCD Director Beau Kennedy reviewed the proposal and noted that:  
 
“The engineer was pretty straightforward on the runoff within the mine being contained. So if 
that’s the case, we shouldn’t have any impact on the stream. The Applicants should verify the 
property complies with State Buffer rules before beginning operations”.   
 
Hay Creek Township: 
Hay Creek Township Planning Commission considered the mineral extraction facility request at a 
public hearing on September 8, 2022. The Town Board approved a CUP for a Commercial Mining 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 6 

Operation at their September 14, 2022 meeting. The Township approved the permit request with 
29 conditions. The Township resolution is attached to this report.  
Security: 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 1 requires the Applicant to post a letter of credit, bond, or cash escrow for 
a mineral extraction facility CUP. The security should account for the costs of bringing the 
operation into compliance with the mineral extraction permit requirements including site 
monitoring and enforcement costs, extraordinary costs of repairing roads due to the special burden 
resulting from the hauling of materials and traffic associated with the operation, site restoration, 
and costs the County may incur in enforcing the terms of the Conditional Use Permit including 
attorney’s fees. The bond shall be for a minimum of one year and shall include a provision for 
notification to the County at least 30 days prior to cancellation or non-renewal. The Applicant has 
proposed reclamation costs to be $419,201.00, staff has calculated the required security to be 
$400,000. 

 
Findings of Fact:  

• The proposed limestone quarry operation does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment 
of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially 
diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity. A quarry has operated on 
this property in the past. The quarry would be located within a primarily agricultural area 
surrounded by wooded blufflands and there are no dwellings within 1,000 feet of the area to 
be mined.   

• That the establishment of the proposed mining operation is not anticipated to impede the 
normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses 
predominant to the area. The use is proposed to meet all standards of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. The quarry 
would be located in an A-2 Zoned section of Hay Creek Township which has 2 dwellings 
where a maximum of 12 are permitted (one per original ¼ ¼). New dwellings are required to 
be at least 1,000 feet from mineral extraction facilities according to Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance Article 14.   

• A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access 
roads, drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be provided to 
accommodate the proposed use.  

• The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space 
to serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking 
requirements. 

• The submitted plans detail adequate measures will be taken to prevent or control offensive 
odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance 
including berming, seeding, hours of operation, and MPCA Noise Standards. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Commission  
• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Bruening Rock 
Products (Applicant) on behalf of Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner) for a Conditional Use Permit to 
operate a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 0 feet from the top and toe of a bluff.  Subject to 
the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and 
narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP; 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 6 

2. Hours of Operation shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through 
Friday and 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Saturday.  Any exceptions must comply with 
Article 14, Section 6, Subd. 4; 

3. Seismic blasting records shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator within 10 
days of receiving the blast analysis; 

4. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, 
and regulations. Evidence shall be provided to the County of all required permits 
prior to the start of Mining Operations; 

5. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 14 Mineral Extraction and Article 22 Agriculture District;  

6. Site Reclamation after completion of mineral extraction shall be performed 
according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative in accordance with 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 4S;  

7. The operation shall be annually registered with Goodhue County in accordance with 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 2;   

8. Security. The Applicant/Operator (Bruening Rock Products) or owner of the 
property on which the mineral extraction is occurring, shall post a letter of credit, 
bond, or cash escrow of $400,000.  If the required Security is provided in the form 
of a “Letter of Credit” or a “Performance Bond”, it shall be subject to review and 
approval by the County Attorney prior to the start of Mining Operations. Goodhue 
County shall be listed as the eligible party to access the Security to reimburse the 
following costs upon failure of the Applicant/Owner to comply with the 
requirements of this Conditional Use Permit;  

9.  Mineral Extraction and related activities are limited to the 23.02 acres as legally    
described on the Certificate of Survey for the Wojcik Quarry for Bruening Rock 
Products by G-Cubed;  

10.  Operator shall adhere to all posted road weight restrictions. Material or debris   
tracked onto County 2 BLVD shall be swept/cleaned within 24 hours; and  

11.  Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land  
Use Management Department prior to constructing any structures on the property.  
 

 
 









 

 
 
 

ENGINEERING 
SURVEYING 
PLANNING 

  

14070 Highway 52 Southeast, Chatfield, Minnesota 55923 
Phone  507-867-1666     Fax  507-867-1665     www.ggg.to                     

 
 

Wojcik Quarry – Bruening Rock Products Application Supplemental 
 

Goodhue County Article 14 – Section 5. Conditional/Interim Use Permit Application Requirements for 
New Mineral Extraction Facilities. 
 Subd. 1. An application form shall be submitted to the County  

A. The required Maps A, B, and C are attached and are 7 pages.   
B. The operator contact shall be: 

Bruening Rock Products, Inc 
Attn: Ronald Fadness (General Counsel) 
900 Montgomery Street 
P.O. Box 127 
Decorah, IA  52101 
(563) 682-2933 

C. The property owner contact is: 
Barbara Wojcik 
34399 County 2 Blvd 
Red Wing, MN  55066 

D. The proposed quarry is 23 acres and is described on Sheet 2 of the attached maps.  
The adjacent property owned by the Wojcik Family is 327.55 acres and below is an 
abbreviated description: 
 
Parcel 34.033.0600 – 120 acres +/- 
The NW ¼ of the SE ¼ and the S ½ of the SE ¼ all in Section 33, T 112 N, R 14 W.  
     And 
Parcel 26.004.0500 – 207.55 acres +/- 
The E ½ of the NW ¼ and the NE ¼ excepting out the road right of way and 
multiple parcels all in Section 4, T 111 N, R 14 W. 

E. Proposed material to be excavated is overburden material, road rock, and 
construction rip rap.  Material will be excavated using common construction 
equipment.  It will be run through a crusher and a screener for size.  Material will be 
stored in stockpiles on-site.  General stockpile location is shown on Sheet 5 of the 
attached maps.  Blasting is proposed and depending on demand for material is 
proposed 1 to 3 times a year.  This will be contracted to a licensed blasting 
contractor.   

F. The facility is proposed to operate for 20 - 30+ years, Monday – Friday from 7:00 
AM to 7 PM and 7:00 AM to 12:00 PM on Saturday.  The quarry is estimated to be 
operation during the active construction season, April through November.  There is 
potential that the quarry will be open beyond these months if the demand is there. 

G. Typical construction equipment shall be utilized to extract the material from the 
quarry surface.  The operator shall utilize excavators, front end loaders, haul trucks, 
screeners, and crushers.  All equipment will be maintained.   



2 
 

H. It is estimated that an average of 25 round-trip truck trips per day shall access the 
quarry and during construction season a peak day may have up to 40 round-trip 
truck trips per day. 

I. There will be no lighting pointing upward or towards any structure on adjoining 
properties. 

Subd. 2. Supporting Documentation. 
A. The existing land use is agricultural and an existing non-active aggregate quarry. 
B. The current zoning of the property and adjacent properties is A-2 Agricultural. 
C. Soils are typically Silt Loam with slopes ranging from 2 to 20 percent across the 

agricultural area of the proposed quarry.  The existing quarry contains complex soils 
that contain Silt Loam over cobbly loam and slopes range from 12 to 70%.  Soil 
Boring logs to attached. 

D. The proposed quarry is a high point on the property with existing drainage flowing 
westerly, southerly, and easterly.  Although the hill will be excavated there will be 
minor impacts to the direction of surface water flow.  The quarry will drain inward 
and infiltrate through sandy/aggregate floor of the quarry.  Drainage around the 
quarry will continue to drain west, south, and southeast.  It is not expected that 
groundwater will be encountered during mining activities.  Per the Geological Atlas 
of Goodhue County, the water table depth is 100 to 200 feet.  Most wells in the area 
show the Static Water Level greater than the depth of excavation. 

E. The mineral source is limestone aggregate.  Depending on the rock formation it is 
proposed that up to 120 feet of depth may be excavated.  This may vary based on 
material found on-site.  The maximum proposed excavation is 1,975,000 Cu.yds of 
aggregate to be excavated.  The aggregate to be excavated is to be used as road rock 
and other road or site construction related needs.    

F. All required local, state, and federal permits will be received prior to excavation 
activities. 

G. The proposed quarry is a high point on the property with existing drainage flowing 
westerly, southerly, and easterly.  Although the hill will be excavated there will be 
minor impacts to the direction of surface water flow.  The quarry will drain inward 
and infiltrate through sandy/aggregate floor of the quarry.  Drainage around the 
quarry will continue to drain west, south, and southeast.  It is not expected that 
groundwater will be encountered during mining activities. 

H. Quarry drainage shall be contained on-site.  There should be minimal effects to the 
existing drainage patterns to the downstream area of the quarry. 

I. There are no wetlands on-site.  The excavation will be protected from NW 
prevailing winds by the screening berm and the quarry itself.  This should minimize 
any negative erosion.  All surface water within the quarry shall be contained by the 
quarry to minimize any runoff erosion.  Traffic will be routed to county highway 
system which is adequately sized for any increase in traffic.  The noise will be 
similar to any construction related activity and will be limited to the approved 
operating schedule. 

J. The site itself is in an A-2 district and is screened by existing tree vegetation.  A 
vegetated berm is proposed around the North, West, and South sides of the quarry 
which will aid in screening the quarry.  Due to the location of the quarry, there is a 
minimal risk of security issues therefore we are not proposing a fence at this time.  
There will be a sign with site rules and regulations at the entrance of the quarry. 



3 
 

K. Complaints should be directed to Ronald Fadness, General Counsel of Bruening 
Rock Products, Inc.  (563) 382-2933.  All complaints will be investigated and a 
resolution sought out.   

L. See attached soil borings.  It is not expected that groundwater is to be encountered 
during excavation.   

M. See Sheet 6 of the attached maps. 
N. A scale will be constructed at the entrance/exit of the pit.  All vehicles will be 

weighed when entering and exiting to ensure they are within limits.   
O. The entrance of the quarry is 3,350 feet along a gravel access road prior to entering 

the county road access point.  The length of travel will minimize any mud or debris 
from being tracked onto any public road. 

P. Dewatering is not proposed and will not be utilized.   
Q. In the case of a failure of the perimeter berm caused by erosion or blowout all 

stormwater would be retained within the pit boundary and filtered out through the 
quarry floor within the site.   The perimeter berm failure would be repaired 
immediately and seeded within 7 days.  The drainage pattern within the site will be 
to the center of the disturbed area which would prevent sediments from eroding 
from the site.   
 
There is no processing proposed that would produce process water, or tailings.  
Fueling and oil changes are contracted to venders who service equipment daily.  Oil 
changes are performed with equipment which extracts used oil from engines 
mechanically which significantly reduces the chance of spillage.  With the exception 
of the petroleum products in the construction equipment there should be no other 
form of chemical contamination on-site.  If a fuel spill would happen, mitigation 
measures including: observing safety precautions, stopping the spill, calling 911 if 
fire or public safety hazards are created, containing the spilled material, reporting 
the spill to the Minnesota Duty Officer and clean up. Spill containment and 
emergency preparedness can minimize damage and cost of cleanup. Materials such 
as containment sorbent and pads may be kept on-site during construction and 
mining operations. Any spill greater than five gallons of petroleum requires the 
operator to contact the Minnesota Duty Officer at (651) 649-5451 or (800) 422-0798 
and report the spill.    

R. A pre-blast survey will be performed by a Minnesota Licensed Engineer of 
surrounding dwellings and buildings within one half mile prior to initial blasting.  
Yearly seismic surveys will be offered and conducted by the engineer if blasting has 
occurred within the year. 

S. There will be a perimeter berm screening visibility of the quarry along with a sign at 
the entrance of the pit with contact information and regulations. 

T. There are no public schools, churches, campgrounds, nursing homes, and platted 
residential properties within one mile of the proposed quarry.   

U. No public monies will be utilized in the establishment, operation, monitoring, or 
reclamation aspects of the proposed quarry.  
 
 
 
      

 



4 
 

 
 
 

Wojcik Quarry – Bruening Rock Products Reclamation Estimate 
 
The proposed end use of the Wojcik Quarry will be grassland to be used as animal habitat.   
 
Once quarry operations have been completed the operator will be responsible for the removal of all 
internal roads, scale, scale house, and machinery (miscellaneous removals).  The site shall then be 
graded per the reclamation map (common excavation).  Once mass grading is complete 6” salvaged 
topsoil shall be spread across all disturbed areas (salvaged topsoil respread).  Upon completion of 
topsoil spreading the entire site shall be seeded, mulched, and fertilized in accordance with the latest 
Minnesota Manual for Erosion Control and MnDot Regulations.  Vegetation shall be inspected at 6 
months and 12 months, noxious weeds shall be removed and non-vegetated areas reseeded as needed 
(seed, fertilize and mulch).   
 
Below is a cost estimate for final reclamation.   
 
 

Wojcik Quarry - Bruening Rock Products 
Reclamation Estimate 

   8/5/2022 
 ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY 

UNI
T

UNIT PRICE   AMOUNT 

     

1 Common Excavation  41945 CY $5.00   $209,725.00  
  (Calculated as in place material excavated and placed as onsite to meet reclamation grades) 

2 Salvaged Topsoil Respread 17747 CY $8.00   $141,976.00  
  (6" average depth)    

3 Seed, fertilize and mulch 22 acre $2,500.00   $55,000.00  
     

4 Miscellaneous removals & disposals 1 LS $12,500.00   $12,500.00  
 (Internal roads, scale, scale house)    
  Total =   $419,201.00  
             

 



Response to Questions submitted prior to final submittal.   

  Questions from Samantha Pierret on 9/20/22 answers in Bold. 

1. I will forward the proposal to our Public Works Directors for review since it directly accesses a 
county road.  

a. We will wait from comments from the Public Works Directors. 
2. Can you clarify in the narrative the minimum coverage of vegetation for reclamation to be 

considered “successful” (usually 70% is acceptable) for Section 5 Map C. k? 
a. The statement on Map C – Sheet 7 was been updated with this statement prior to 

submittal. 
3. Will the facility operate 12 months/year or only during the construction season? 

a. The application Supplemental Narrative was updated prior to submittal to clarify.   

 
F. The facility is proposed to operate for 20 - 30+ years, Monday – Friday from 
7:00 AM to 7 PM and 7:00 AM to 12:00 PM on Saturday. The quarry is 
estimated to be operation during the active construction season, April through 
November. There is potential that the quarry will be open beyond these months 
if the demand is there. 

4. Can you verify that the existing bridge over Wells Creek is capable of handling the anticipated 
loads and number of trips created by the mining operation? If the bridge needs to be repaired or 
reconstructed at any point, appropriate permits from the DNR will be required.  

a. The current water crossing has handled the existing quarry and agricultural trucking by 
the Wojcek family.  If the crossing is in need of repair of replacement all local, state, 
and federal permits will be acquired.   

5. Stockpiles are not permitted within 50 feet of property lines. The eastern stockpile appears to 
be less than 50 feet from the east property line belonging to Betcher Heritage Farm Partners.  

a. The stockpile location was updated on Map B – Sheet 5 prior to submittal. 
6. The access driveway should be at least 14 feet wide driving surface and not more than a 14% 

grade, can you confirm? 
a. The access drive will be a min. of 14’ wide and less than 14% grade and is noted on 

Map B – Sheet 5.  
 

Questions from Chad Hildebrand on 9‐22‐22 

 How will the altered watershed from the new quarry be handled and how will the water 
be treated leaving the quarry site in the Southeast corner as it moves towards Wells 
Creek. Water from the North and East flow through a natural gully/ravine and down the 
field road through an identified stockpile area.  
 All drainage will be contained within the quarry.  The existing flow from the 

North and East will continue to flow through the natural gully/ravine and 
bypass the proposed stockpile area.  A vegetated berm will be constructed in 
the area to maintain a buffer from any potential run on of stormwater and any 
run off from any stockpiles.  All quarry contact stormwater shall be contained 
on‐site. 

o Concerns with the treatment of the water as Wells Creek was recently listed as 
Impaired by the MPCA for TSS (Total Suspended Solids) in 2021. 



 Wells Creek is greater than 1000 feet from the proposed quarry limits.  With 
the quarry being self‐containing of stormwater there should be no negative 
effects to Wells Creek.  If a large storm event were to create stormwater 
discharge from the quarry the stormwater would run through over 1000 feet of 
woodlands or vegetated agricultural field prior to reaching wells creek.  The 
failure point of discharge would be repaired immediately to prevent any future 
discharge.   

o Needs to be a developed plan to help treat and mitigate the water from the 
mining area (New mining area, access road, stockpile areas, etc.) 

 The proposed quarry is a high point on the property with existing drainage 
flowing westerly, southerly, and easterly. Although the hill will be excavated 
there will be minor impacts to the direction of surface water flow. The quarry 
will drain inward and infiltrate through sandy/aggregate floor of the quarry. 
Drainage around the quarry will continue to drain west, south, and southeast.  
The oncoming drainage from the north will be diverted around the quarry and 
ultimately to the southeast and southwest as it currently does. 

 

 Would ensure that the parcel(s) are compliant with other state laws, example 103F.48‐
Buffer Law. 
 We would agree to this condition. 

 

 No Soil Borings from the mining site which is required by our Mining Ordinance to 
review right now, would say it is not a complete application until those are completed 
and provided. 
 Soil Borings and locations are attached. 

 

















DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2022.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created September, 2022 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

34

33 34

A2

C
O

U
N

TY
 2

CO
UNTY 3

C
O

U
N

TY
 45

Well
s Creek

C
le

ar Creek

340330600
BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

120

340330500
BETCHER HERITAGE FARM PARTNERS

40

0 90 180 27045
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION
Public Hearing

October 17, 2022

Bruening Rock Products (Applicant)
Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner)

 A2 Zoned District

The NW 1/4 and the S 1/2 of the
SE 1/4 of Section 33 TWP 112

Range 14 in Hay Creek Township.

Request for a Non-Metallic
Mineral Extraction Facility.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW

Approximate Area
to be Mined



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2022.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created September, 2022 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

34

33 34

A2

C
O

U
N

TY
 2

CO
UNTY 3

C
O

U
N

TY
 45

Well
s Creek

C
le

ar Creek2 340330600
BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

120

340330200
BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

150

340330500
BETCHER HERITAGE FARM PARTNERS

40

340330300
L MICHAEL KELLY TTEE

110.38

0 180 360 54090
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION
Public Hearing

October 17, 2022

Bruening Rock Products (Applicant)
Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner)

 A2 Zoned District

The NW 1/4 and the S 1/2 of the
SE 1/4 of Section 33 TWP 112

Range 14 in Hay Creek Township.

Request for a Non-Metallic
Mineral Extraction Facility.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2022.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created September, 2022 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

34

33 34

A2

C
O

U
N

TY
 2

CO
UNTY 3

C
O

U
N

TY
 45

Well
s Creek

C
le

ar Creek

2

COUNTY 2

340330600
BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

120

260040500
BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

207.55

340330200
BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

150

340341400
PATRICIA I STEMMANN RT

40

340330500
BETCHER HERITAGE FARM PARTNERS

40

260030800
JOHN W NELSON

15.9

340341200
BETCHER HERITAGE FARM PARTNERS

80

340330800
L MICHAEL KELLY TTEE

80

260030700
ROBERT A DREHMEL

28.57

340330300
L MICHAEL KELLY TTEE

110.38

260040100
ROBERT A DREHMEL

18.63

340340803
SAMUEL P BETCHER

25.48

260030300
ANDY D STEMMANN

3.06

340340804
BETCHER HERITAGE FARM PARTNERS

7.36

260030500
ANDY D STEMMANN

2.6

260040200
STEVEN L CARDELL

2

260030600
DANNY D TIPCKE

33.19

Wells Creek

Wells Creek

0 460 920 1,380230
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION
Public Hearing

October 17, 2022

Bruening Rock Products (Applicant)
Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner)

 A2 Zoned District

The NW 1/4 and the S 1/2 of the
SE 1/4 of Section 33 TWP 112

Range 14 in Hay Creek Township.

Request for a Non-Metallic
Mineral Extraction Facility.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2022.

2020 Aerial Imagery
Map Created September, 2022 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

35 4

32 33 34

A2

C
O

U
N

TY
 2

CO
UNTY 3

350TH

Wel ls C
reek

8

2 9

15

34

33 34

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 2

CO
UNTY 3

350TH

C
O

U
N

TY
 45

B
E

TC
H

E
R

W
E

LL
S

 C
R

E
E

K

D
IE

R
C

KS

Wells Cr eek

Clear C
reek

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
US Feet

MAP 02: VICINITY MAP
PLANNING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
October 17, 2022

Bruening Rock Products (Applicant)
Barbara Wojcik LT (Owner)

 A2 Zoned District

The NW 1/4 and the S 1/2 of the
SE 1/4 of Section 33 TWP 112

Range 14 in Hay Creek Township.

Request for a Non-Metallic
Mineral Extraction Facility.



3

4

33

3
4

Hay Creek

Belvidere

COUNTY
 2

W
el

ls
Cr

ee
k

340330200

340330600

BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

BARBARA J WOJCIK LT

¯
0 1,000500

Feet

Figure 1

2020 Aerial Imagery

This is for informational use only and not used for precise or construction measurements. Only informational.

Wojcik Exhibit
Hay Creek Twp, Section 33, Range 14

Bluff

Public Watercourse

Previously Mined Area ???

Mining Area Boundary

Parcel



Project:  Wojcek Quarry Project Number: 21-253 Client: Wojcek Boring No.

Location: Hay Creek Twp. Drilling Contractor: Drill Rig Type:

Logged By: Floyd Started: 9/26/2022 Bit Type: Auger Groundwater Depth:
None Encountered

Drill Crew: Bruening Completed 9/26/2022 Total Depth of Boring:
   80 feet

End of Boring 80 ft. - Elev. 1000

Bruening

1

1080Elevation:

Sandy Loam, brown, moist - Elev. 1080 SM

Lo
es

s

Limestone Bedrock, tan to grey - Elev. 1061

O
ne

ot
a 

D
ol

om
ite

Sand with Gravel, brown - Elev. 1045

Jo
rd

an
 

S
an

ds
to

ne

SP

S
t. 

La
w

re
nc

e 
F

or
m

at
io

n

D
ep

th
 (

fe
et

)

U
S

C
S

DESCRIPTION OF MATERIAL

D
at

e

W
L

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 

O
R

IG
IN

Limestone Bedrock, tan to grey - 1035

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80



Project:  Wojcek Quarry Project Number: 21-253 Client: Wojcek Boring No.

Location: Hay Creek Twp. Drilling Contractor: Drill Rig Type:

Logged By: Floyd Started: 9/26/2022 Bit Type: Auger Groundwater Depth:
None Encountered

Drill Crew: Bruening Completed 9/26/2022 Total Depth of Boring:
   80 feet

Seam of Shale, tan - Elev. 1058
Jo

rd
an

 
S

an
ds

t
on

e
S

t. 
La

w
re

nc
e 

F
or

m
at

io
n

Limestone Bedrock, tan to grey - Elev. 1053

Limestone Bedrock, tan to grey - Elev. 1077

O
ne

ot
a 

D
ol

om
ite

1098Elevation:

End of Boring 80 ft. - Elev. 1018

Lo
es

s

SMSandy Loam, brown, moist - Elev. 1098

2

Bruening

D
at

e

D
ep

th
 (

fe
et

)

DESCRIPTION OF MATERIAL

U
S

C
S

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 

O
R

IG
IN

W
L

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80



Project:  Wojcek Quarry Project Number: 21-253 Client: Wojcek Boring No.

Location: Hay Creek Twp. Drilling Contractor: Drill Rig Type:

Logged By: Floyd Started: 9/26/2022 Bit Type: Auger Groundwater Depth:
None Encountered

Drill Crew: Bruening Completed 9/26/2022 Total Depth of Boring:
   80 feet

SWSand, Dark Brown - Elev. 1060

S
t.

 L
aw

re
nc

e 
F

or
m

at
io

n

Limestone Bedrock, buff to tan - Elev. 1045

End of Boring 80 ft. - Elev. 1015

Lo
es

s

SMSandy Loam, brown, moist - Elev. 1095

Jo
rd

an
 S

an
ds

to
ne

Elevation: 1095

3

Bruening

D
at

e

D
ep

th
 (

fe
et

)

DESCRIPTION OF MATERIAL

U
S

C
S

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 

O
R

IG
IN

W
L

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80



Project:  Wojcek Quarry Project Number: 21-253 Client: Wojcek Boring No.

Location: Hay Creek Twp. Drilling Contractor: Drill Rig Type:

Logged By: Floyd Started: 9/26/2022 Bit Type: Auger Groundwater Depth:
None Encountered

Drill Crew: Bruening Completed 9/26/2022 Total Depth of Boring:
   30

End of Boring 30 ft. - Elev. 968

998Elevation:

Limestone Bedrock, buff to tan - Elev. 998

S
t. 

La
w

re
nc

e 
F

or
m

at
io

n

4

Bruening

D
at

e

D
ep

th
 (

fe
et

)

DESCRIPTION OF MATERIAL

U
S

C
S

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 

O
R

IG
IN

W
L

5

10

15

20

25

30



www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.

Feet

0 200 400



 

www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.

”

”
”

”
”

” ”
” ”

”
” ”

” ”
” ”

” ”
”



www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.



www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.

Feet

0 1000 2000



www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.

Feet

0 200 400



www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.



www.ggg.to
1665-867-Fax  507
1666-867-Ph.  507

PLANNING
SURVEYING

ENGINEERING

Chatfield, MN 55923

14070 Hwy 52 S.E.

Feet

0 200 400



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 17, 2022 
Report date: October 7, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Conservation Subdivision Plat – Mehrkens 
Request submitted by Ted and Sheila Mehrkens (owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat 
approval of the proposed “Mehrkens Subdivision” to rezone 40.0 acres and create a two-lot 
Conservation Subdivision District on property currently zoned A-1 (Agriculture Protection 
District). 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Ted and Sheila Mehrkens (Owners) 
Address of zoning request: TBD HWY 60 BLVD Mazeppa, MN 55956 
Parcel: 39.011.0300 and 39.011.0400 
Legal Description: The W ½ of the NE ¼ and part of the NE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 11 
TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township  
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture Protection District)  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and Plat 
Proposed Conservation Easement and Trust 
CS District (Article 35) 
MN Statute Chapter 84C 
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Overview:  
The Applicants (Ted and Sheila Mehrkens) are requesting Preliminary and Final Plat approval for 
the proposed “Mehrkens Subdivision” as a Conservation Subdivision in Pine Island Township. The 
proposal is to plat 40.0-acres of land (currently configured as one 10-acre parcel and one 80-acre 
parcel) into a two-lot Conservation Subdivision to allow the establishment of two dwelling sites on 
the property. The property is located in section 11 of Pine Island Township which is zoned A1 
(Agriculture Protection District) allowing a maximum of 4 dwellings in the section. The section 
currently has 5 dwellings therefore there is no density remaining to establish any more dwellings at 
this time.  

In 2017 Goodhue County amended the zoning ordinance adding language requiring requests for 
increased dwelling density to be pursued through the change of zone process and not through the 
variance process. The Conservation Subdivision (CS) District was approved by the County Board in 
August 2019 as a new option for increasing density in rural areas with a focus on conservation and 
natural resource preservation. The CS District requires a potential Applicant to plat the property in 
conformance with the Goodhue County Subdivision Controls Ordinance and place a minimum of 
50% of the total acreage under a permanent Conservation Easement conforming to Minnesota 
Statute Chapter 84C. The CS District is a separate zone that would replace the existing A1 zoning 
designation. The allowable building density within the Conservation Subdivision is determined 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

through the review process (maximum of 6).  

It should be noted the dwelling density within a CS District does not count against the overall section 
density for A1 or A2 districts. 

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The subject property consists of two parcels. One 10-acre parcel and one 80-acre parcel. This 

acreage has been owned by the Applicants since the mid-1980s. 

 The parcels and adjacent properties to the east, west, and south are zoned A1 (Agriculture 
Protection District). Land to the north is in section 02 of Pine Island Township and is zoned A2 
(Agriculture District). All sections of Pine Island Township surrounding the properties are 
considered “full” for dwelling development. Surrounding land uses are mostly row-crop 
agriculture among some woodlands and low-density residential uses. Parcel 39.011.0100 east of 
the proposed Conservation Subdivision has received IUP approval for a utility-scale solar garden 
however a building permit has not been applied for to construct the facility.  

 The property has rolling topography with slopes of approximately 6%-15%. There are no 
Blufflands (>30% slopes) identified on the parcel.  

Existing/Proposed Uses: 
 The Applicants propose to plat the property into two lots with one outlot. Lot 1 Block 1 would 

contain 10.0-acres, Lot 2 Block 1 would contain 7.5-acres, and Outlot A would contain 22.5-acres. 
The Conservation Subdivision plat comprises 40 acres.  

The minimum lot size for lots served by an individual Subsurface Sewage Treatment System 
(SSTS) is 3 acres in the CS District. A minimum of 40 contiguous acres is required for a CS 
District. 

 Density for two additional primary dwelling sites would be created by the plat.  

The Applicant would need to obtain a Building Permit from the Goodhue County Building 
Permits Department before commencing construction of any structures. 

 The Applicants intend to plat 40 acres of two existing parcels comprising a total of 90 acres. The 
remaining 50 acres consist of actively farmed cropland. The Applicant intends to continue using 
this acreage for row crop agriculture.   

Access/Traffic: 
 There is existing field access off Highway 60 (MnDOT highway) on parcel 39.011.0400. The 

Applicants have proposed to establish a 33-foot wide easement for access to Parcel B, Outlot A, 
and the remaining cropland. All parcels will maintain frontage on Highway 60. The Applicant 
will need to work with MnDOT to obtain any necessary approvals prior to performing any work 
within the Right-of-Way.  

 No new public roadway is proposed within the plat.  

 The proposed plat is not anticipated to generate traffic uncharacteristic of the area. Given the plat 
would create two additional development sites, the potential additional traffic volume is not 
anticipated to exceed the capacity of the existing road infrastructure or substantially impact 
existing traffic circulation or safety. The proposal has been sent to MnDOT District 6 for review 
and comments. Comments were not available prior to print, staff will update the Planning 
Commission with any comments from MnDOT.  

Utilities: 
 The proposed dwellings would be served by individual wells and septic systems upon 

development. There are no existing wells or septics on the properties. 

Drainage/Landscaping: 
 Stormwater drainage is directed downslope to the north and south of the property.   

The Applicant is not proposing to change the existing site grades. Some grading of the property is 
anticipated as a result of the proposed future development of two dwellings and an access 
driveway, however, the limited scale of development is not likely to produce on-going erosion and 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

sediment control issues off-site provided construction Best Management Practices and erosion 
control devices are implemented as necessary during the construction phase.  

 Goodhue County SWCD Water Planner Chad Hildebrand reviewed the proposal and offered the 
following comments: 

There are areas of steeper hillsides. If houses are built there, would just need to keep that in 
mind for if a diversion or a retaining wall would be needed. Depending on how they plan to 
build the house of course. Overall, I don’t notice anything major that is jumping out that would 
bring concern.  

Pine Island Township: 
 The Applicants have informed the Township of their intent to plat the parcels into a Conservation 

Subdivision. Pine Island Township provided a letter dated March 22, 2022, stating they do not 
have any objections to the intended use of the property.  

Open Space/Conservation Easement: 
 The CS District requires a minimum of 50% of the total acreage in the Conservation Subdivision 

to be designated as Open Space which shall identify a “conservation theme” that guides the 
location and use of the designated Open Space. 

 A permanent Conservation Easement, governed by Minnesota Statute 84C.01-84C.05 
encompassing the entirety of the Open Space is required to be recorded prior to or at the time of 
platting. 

 The Applicant has provided a Conservation Easement for PAC consideration. The easement 
encompasses 22.5-acres and identifies the promotion of an open environment, protection of 
water and air quality, and the protection of farmland to provide food safety and security as the 
“theme”. The easement states the protected property “…has significant natural, open space, and 
agricultural values (individually and collectively, “Conservation Values”), that protect natural 
resources, and maintain or enhance air or water quality.”  

Use of the designated conservation easement area for industrial, commercial, and residential 
uses or development is exclusively prohibited. The easement does provide for continued 
agricultural use of the Open Space consistent with the stated conservation values. The Applicant 
intends to continue using the Open Space for crop production. Improvements such as utility 
services and septic systems, roads, parking areas, paths, and trails or like improvements are 
permissible within the conserved area so long as they are installed consistent with the easement’s 
Conservation Values. 

The agreement also includes customary provisions for annual inspection access and rights of 
enforcement for any violations of the agreement by the easement holder (trustee) and appears 
generally in conformance with the requirements of the CS District Regulations and the 
requirements of Minnesota Statute 84C. 

LUM Staff Conservation Easement Comments: 
 LUM Staff has evaluated the Applicant’s proposed Conservation Subdivision plat in accordance 

with the associated performance standards and the purpose and intent of the CS District. Staff 
agrees that the proposal to establish two additional dwellings on the property is both a 
reasonable use of the property and largely aligns with the purpose and intent of the CS District.  

The Applicant has worked with their attorney (Charles O. Richardson of Richardson & 
Richardson) to create a Minnesota Statute Chapter 501B Charitable Trust to hold the easement. 
The “Mehrkens Open Spaces Trust” is proposed to be the designated holder of the conservation 
easement. The “Trustee” has been designated as Cassandra Mehrkens. The Trustee is an 
independent third party and is not the landowner nor will the Trustee have any ownership 
interest in either the Open Space (Outlot A) or the developable lots. A secondary Trustee has also 
been named, Kyle Mehrkens who also does not have any ownership interest in the Open Space 
(Outlot A) or the developable lots. Charitable trusts are identified as qualified easement holders 
by MN Statute 84C. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Ted and 
Sheila Mehrkens (Owners), for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Mehrkens 
Subdivision” to rezone 40.0 acres and create a two-lot Conservation Subdivision District on property 
currently zoned A1 (Agricultural Protection District). 

Subject to the following condition: 

1. The change of zone shall not occur until the Conservation Easement and Plat have been 
recorded with the Goodhue County Recorder’s Office.  





















CHAPTER 84C

CONSERVATION EASEMENTS
DEFINITIONS.84C.01
CREATION, CONVEYANCE, ACCEPTANCE, AND
DURATION.

84C.02
JUDICIAL ACTIONS.84C.03

VALIDITY.84C.04

APPLICABILITY.84C.05

84C.01 DEFINITIONS.

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

(1) "Conservation easement" means a nonpossessory interest of a holder in real property imposing
limitations or affirmative obligations the purposes of which include retaining or protecting natural, scenic,
or open-space values of real property, assuring its availability for agricultural, forest, recreational, or
open-space use, protecting natural resources, maintaining or enhancing air or water quality, or preserving
the historical, architectural, archaeological, or cultural aspects of real property.

(2) "Holder" means:

(i) a governmental body empowered to hold an interest in real property under the laws of this state or
the United States; or

(ii) a charitable corporation, charitable association, or charitable trust, the purposes or powers of which
include retaining or protecting the natural, scenic, or open-space values of real property, assuring the
availability of real property for agricultural, forest, recreational, or open-space use, protecting natural
resources, maintaining or enhancing air or water quality, or preserving the historical, architectural,
archaeological, or cultural aspects of real property.

(3) "Third-party right of enforcement" means a right provided in a conservation easement to enforce
any of its terms granted to a governmental body, charitable corporation, charitable association, or charitable
trust, which, although eligible to be a holder, is not a holder.

History: 1985 c 232 s 1

84C.02 CREATION, CONVEYANCE, ACCEPTANCE, AND DURATION.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, a conservation easement may be created, conveyed,
recorded, assigned, released, modified, terminated, or otherwise altered or affected in the same manner as
other easements.

(b) No right or duty in favor of or against a holder and no right in favor of a person having a third-party
right of enforcement arises under a conservation easement before its acceptance by the holder and a recordation
of the acceptance.

(c) Except as provided in section 84C.03, clause (b), a conservation easement is unlimited in duration
unless the instrument creating it otherwise provides.

(d) An interest in real property in existence at the time a conservation easement is created is not impaired
by it unless the owner of the interest is a party to the conservation easement or consents to it.

History: 1985 c 232 s 2

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

84C.02MINNESOTA STATUTES 20211



84C.03 JUDICIAL ACTIONS.

(a) An action affecting a conservation easement may be brought by:

(1) an owner of an interest in the real property burdened by the easement;

(2) a holder of the easement;

(3) a person having a third-party right of enforcement; or

(4) a person authorized by other law.

(b) This chapter does not affect the power of a court to modify or terminate a conservation easement in
accordance with the principles of law and equity.

History: 1985 c 232 s 3

84C.04 VALIDITY.

A conservation easement is valid even though:

(1) it is not appurtenant to an interest in real property;

(2) it can be or has been assigned to another holder;

(3) it is not of a character that has been recognized traditionally at common law;

(4) it imposes a negative burden;

(5) it imposes affirmative obligations upon the owner of an interest in the burdened property or upon
the holder;

(6) the benefit does not touch or concern real property; or

(7) there is no privity of estate or of contract.

History: 1985 c 232 s 4

84C.05 APPLICABILITY.

(a) This chapter applies to any interest created after August 1, 1985, which complies with this chapter,
whether designated as a conservation easement or as a covenant, equitable servitude, restriction, easement,
or otherwise.

(b) This chapter applies to any interest created before August 1, 1985, if it would have been enforceable
had it been created after August 1, 1985, unless retroactive application contravenes the constitution or laws
of this state or the United States.

(c) This chapter does not invalidate any interest, whether designated as a conservation or preservation
easement or as a covenant, equitable servitude, restriction, easement, or otherwise, that is enforceable under
other law of this state.

History: 1985 c 232 s 5

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

2MINNESOTA STATUTES 202184C.03



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 35  Amended June 2, 2020 

 

ARTICLE 35   CS, CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION     
DISTRICT 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE 
The Conservation Subdivision (CS) District is intended to provide a residential development 
option that supports the rural character and residential development goals of Goodhue County, 
while permanently preserving open space, agriculture, and natural resource areas, beyond 
planned future extension of urban services. 

Section 2.  PERMITTED USES 
All permitted uses are subject to zoning and building permits.  Permitted uses allowed in the CS 
Zoning District shall be as shown in Article 20, Section 7, “Table of Uses”. 

Section 3.  CONDITIONAL USES AND INTERIM USES 
All conditional uses and interim uses are subject to zoning and building permits.  Conditional 
and interim uses allowed in the CS Zoning District shall be as shown in Article 20, Section 7, 
“Table of Uses.” 

Section 4.  ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 
Accessory buildings in the CS district may be permitted when located on the same parcel as the 
principal building and shall comply with the following standards: 

Subd. 1. No accessory buildings shall be permitted on a parcel prior to the establishment of 
the principal building. 

Subd. 2. Detached accessory buildings shall be limited in size to 7,200 square feet in area. 

Subd. 3. Greenhouses, conservatories, swimming pools, tennis courts or similar non-
commercial recreational facilities for the private enjoyment and convenience of the 
residents of the principal use and their guests shall be allowed. 

Subd. 4. Livestock shall be permissible as an accessory use provided no parcel exceeds 9 
Animal Units. 

Subd. 5. Any temporary buildings for uses incidental to construction work, which shall be 
removed upon completion or abandonment of such construction work. 

Section 5.  DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
Subd. 1 Minimum Subdivision Size.  The minimum area required for a Conservation 

Subdivision shall be 40 contiguous acres. 

Subd 2. Density.  The maximum density of Conservation Subdivisions without a shared 
SSTS shall be 4 dwellings.  The maximum density of Conservation Subdivisions 
with a shared SSTS shall be 6 dwellings.  



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 35  Amended June 2, 2020 

 

Subd. 3 Lot Size.  Any lot on which a single-family dwelling unit is to be erected shall 
contain a minimum of 3 acres of Buildable Area.  Lots with a shared SSTS shall be 
a minimum of 2 acres of Buildable Area. 

Subd. 4 Yard Requirements.  Every building shall meet the following Yard requirements: 

 A.   Front Yard. 

 1. There shall be a minimum setback of 40 feet from the right-of-way line 
of any public road or highway. 

 2.  There shall be a minimum setback of 25 feet from the right-of-way line 
any private road. 

B.   Side and Rear Yards.  Every building shall have a minimum setback of 40 
feet. 

C.  Buffer zones.  All dwellings and accessory structures shall have a minimum 
setback of 100 feet from surrounding agricultural uses. 

Subd. 5 Height Requirements.  Every building shall have a maximum height of 35 feet. 

Subd. 6 Open Space Requirements.  Conservation Subdivisions shall identify a 
conservation theme. Conservation themes may include, but are not limited to, 
forest, water quality, farmland, or view-shed preservation. The conservation 
theme shall guide the location and use of the designated Open Space. 

A.  A minimum of 50% of the total acreage in the Conservation Subdivision shall 
be designated as Open Space.  

B.  Where practical, designated Open Space shall be contiguous with adjacent 
agriculture, wildlife corridors, forestry, natural habitats, preserves, or trails. 

SECTION 6.    GENERAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1 A proposed Minnesota Statute 505 plat shall accompany all Conservation 

Subdivision change of zone requests and shall be considered part of the 
application. The plat must obtain the approval of the Township in which it is 
located in order to be recorded.  No buildings or development may occur on the 
site until the plat is recorded. 

Subd. 2 Open Space Ownership and Management.  All lands and improvements in 
designated Open Spaces shall be established, managed and maintained in 
accordance with the following: 

A.  Conservation Easement.  A permanent Conservation Easement that 
encompasses the entire Open Space area must be recorded prior to, or at the 
time of platting.  

B.  Conservation Easements shall be governed by Minnesota Statute 84C.01-
84C.05, and include: 

1.    The entity to maintain the designated Open Space; 

2.  The purposes of the Conservation Easement; 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 35  Amended June 2, 2020 

 

3.  The legal description of the land within the easement; 

4.  The restrictions on the use of the land; 

5.  A restriction from future dwelling development of the easement; 

6.  The standards under which the Open Space will be maintained; and 

7.  Who will have access to the Open Space. 

C.  All structures located within the designated Open Space must obtain 
appropriate permits.  As part of the permit application, structures must 
demonstrate they are in harmony with the associated Open Space theme.  
Shared SSTS and shared wells within the Conservation Subdivision may be 
located within the Open Space designated parcels if allowed by the 
Conservation Easement restrictions. 

Subd. 3. Public Road Frontage or Road Access Easements Standards: 

A. Each Parcel shall include a minimum 33 feet of frontage on a public road right-
of-way line extending to the building line.  As an alternative, a single parcel that 
does not front on a public road may be permitted upon the recording (with the 
Goodhue County Recorder) of a driveway access easement that is a minimum of 
33 feet in width and has been determined to be acceptable by the Goodhue 
County Land Use Management Department.  

B. Access for two or more lots shall follow the Road Design Standards in the 
Goodhue County Subdivision Controls Ordinance.  


















